
U.S. Department of Justice 
 
 

United States Attorney 
Eastern District of New York 

  
 271 Cadman Plaza East 
 Brooklyn, New York 11201 
 

June 9, 2021 
BY ECF 
The Honorable Ramon E. Reyes, Jr.  
United States District Court  
Eastern District of New York 
225 Cadman Plaza East 
Brooklyn, New York 11201 
 

Re: Bing Guan, et al. v. Alejandro Mayorkas, et al.,  
 Civ. No. 19-CV-6570 (Chen, J.) (Reyes, M.J.) (E.D.N.Y.) 

 
Dear Judge Reyes:  
 

The parties in the above-referenced action respectfully submit this letter to request a 30-
day extension of time, from June 11 to July 12, 2021, to exchange their initial disclosures. In light 
of this request, the parties further respectfully request a five-week extension of time, from June 21 
to July 26, 2021, for the commencement of discovery. 

In support of this request, the parties provide the following factual background. On April 
21, 2021, counsel for the parties appeared before the Court for an initial conference in this case. 
The Court ordered the parties to serve initial disclosures pursuant to Federal Rule of Civil 
Procedure 26(a) by May 28, 2021, and to file a protective order prior to exchanging initial 
disclosures. See Minute Order (Apr. 21, 2021). On May 24, 2021, counsel for Defendants sent 
counsel for Plaintiffs a proposed protective order. On May 26, 2021, the parties jointly moved for 
a brief extension of the deadline to exchange their initial disclosures. See Dkt. No. 44. On May 27, 
2021, the Court granted the parties’ requested extension, from May 28 to June 11, 2021, to serve 
their initial disclosures. See Order (May 27, 2021). 

The parties respectfully request an additional 30-day extension of time, from June 11 to 
July 12, 2021 to serve their initial disclosures. The parties seek this extension because they need 
additional time to review and finalize the protective order for this case, which they must file and 
the Court must endorse prior to the exchange of initial disclosures. As noted, Defendants sent 
Plaintiffs a proposed protective order on May 24. On June 4, 2021, Plaintiffs provided an 
alternative protective order, on the basis that it addressed both parties’ interests in protecting 
information during discovery and was modeled after prior protective orders agreed to in litigation 
between the ACLU and the government. On June 8, 2021, counsel for the parties conferred and 
Defendants’ counsel informed Plaintiffs’ counsel that Defendants would need an additional 30 
days to review and respond to Plaintiffs’ proposed protective order. 

In light of the parties’ request for this extension to serve their initial disclosures, the parties 
further respectfully request the following amendments to the case management plan: 
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1. Discovery shall not commence before July 26, 2021. 

2. The parties shall make required Rule 26(a)(2) disclosures with respect to 

a. Expert witnesses on or before: October 26, 2021. 

b. Rebuttal expert witnesses on or before: November 26, 2021. 

3. All discovery, including deposition of experts, shall be completed on or before January 
26, 2022. 

The parties thank the Court for its consideration of this request. 

Respectfully submitted, 
 

MARK J. LESKO 
Acting United States Attorney 
Attorney for Defendants 

 
By: /s/   ______ 

DAVID A. COOPER 
EKTA R. DHARIA 
Assistant U.S. Attorneys 
(718) 254-6228/7520  
david.cooper4@usdoj.gov 
ekta.dharia@usdoj.gov 

 
Mitra Ebadolahi 
Emily Child 
American Civil Liberties Union   
     Foundation of San Diego &  
     Imperial Counties 
P.O. Box 87131 
San Diego, CA 92138–7131 
mebadolahi@aclusandiego.org 
echild@aclusandiego.org 

Scarlet Kim 
Arianna Demas 
American Civil Liberties Union 
     Foundation            
125 Broad Street, 18th Floor 
New York, New York 10004 
(212) 549–2500 
scarletk@aclu.org   
ademas@aclu.org   

 
Antony Gemmell 
Christopher Dunn 
New York Civil Liberties Union   
     Foundation 
125 Broad Street, 19th Floor 
New York, New York 10004 
(212) 607-3300 
agemmell@nyclu.org 
cdunn@nyclu.org 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Counsel for Plaintiffs 
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